VERITEXT
(LEGAL SOLUTIONS

Deposition of:
Long-Term CareHearing

November 7, 2019

In the Matter of:

Long Term Care Hearing

Veritext Legal Solutions
800.808.4958 | calendar-dmv@veritext.com |




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

Page 1

MARYLAND | NSURANCE ADM NI STRATI ON
LONG TERM CARE HEARI NG
OFFI CE OF THE CHI EF ACTUARY

Thur sday, Novenber 7, 2019

The hearing in Re: MARYLAND LONG TERM CARE
was held on Thursday, Novenber 7, 2019, at 9:00 a.m, at
t he Maryl and I nsurance Adm ni stration, 200 St. Paul
Pl ace, Suite 2700, Baltinmore, Maryland 21202, before

Louisa B. McIntire-Brooks, Notary Public.

Reported by: Louisa B. Mlntire-Brooks
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PROCEEDI NGS

MR. REDMER: Good norning. Anybody on the
line?

MS. KIM This is Kristin Kimfrom Lincoln
Nati onal representing Lincoln National.

MR. THOWSON: Good nmorning. This is Nick
Thonpson with United Health G oup on the phone.

MR. REDMER: Hey, Nick. Thank you.

MR. THOWPSON: Thank you.

MR. REDMER: Good norning, everybody. |
have 9:00 a.m, so if you don't mnd, we will begin
today's long-termcare rate hearing. | want to wel cone
everybody that's in the room and thank those of you
that are on the phone. |'m Al Redner for the Maryl and
| nsurance Adm nistration, and this is our fourth and
final public hearing on specific carrier rate increases
for long-termcare for 2019.

Today's hearing will focus on several rate
I ncrease requests now before the MA in the individual
market. These include rate increase requests from
Li ncoln National Life |Insurance Conpany that's

proposi ng an increase of 15 percent. Anerican Ceneral
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Life I nsurance Conpany proposing increases of
15 percent, Metropolitan |Insurance Conmpany proposi ng
I ncreases of 13.59 percent up to 15 percent dependi ng
upon the policy form TIAA-CREF Life Insurance Conpany
proposi ng i ncreases of 15 percent. Teacher's Insurance
and Annuity Association of America proposing increases
of 15 percent. Union Security |Insurance Conpany
proposi ng i ncreases of 15 percent, and finally, Tine
| nsurance Conpany |l proposing increases of 15 percent.
I want to note that the original agenda and
hearing notice indicated that Bankers Life and Casualty
Conpany was requesting an increase, however, the
conpany has w thdrawn that request. So, they wll not
be subject to this hearing.
The request before us today affect about
5,516 Maryl and policyhol ders and the goal of today's
hearing is for the insurance conpani es' representatives
to explain the reasons for the rate increases. W wll
also listen to comments from consuners and ot her
I nterested parties. So, we're hear to |isten, ask
guestions of the carriers and consuners regarding the

specific rate increase requests.
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Before we get started, |'d |like to take a
noment just to introduce the folks that are here at the
front table with me fromthe Maryl and | nsurance
Adm nistration. To the far left is Todd Sw tzer, our
chief actuary. To kind of like in the m ddle but on
the right hand side is Adam Zi nmerman, an actuary, Jeff
Ji, senior actuary, to ny imediate left is Zack
Peters, our chief of staff, to ny immediate right is
Davi d Cooney, our associate conm ssioner of life and
heal th and our principal counsel fromthe Attorney
General's Ofice is sitting in the back, Van Dorsey.
Before we get started, | want to go over -- |I'msorry,
Joe Sviatko, public relations on the right. Todd wll
I ntroduce his teamin a nonent.

' mgoing to go over just a couple of the
procedures before we get started. First of all, in the
back entry there is a handout that has all of our
contact information on it. Please nmake sure to pick up
a copy. |If you would |ike to speak, we have asked
folks to sign the sign up sheet and include your nane
and contact information. And secondly, comments from

I nterested parties had been received and reviewed in
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advance of the neeting. And anybody that wants to
submt additional coments has until Thursday, Novenber
the 14th. So, again we're going to keep the record
open until Thursday, Novenber the 14th for additional
witten testinony.

Al so, the transcript of today's neeting as
well as all witten testinony that is submtted wll be
posted on our website on the |long-term care page as
wel | as the quasi |egislation hearing page. The
| ong-term care page can be found on our website by
clicking on the long-termcare tab | ocated under the
qui ck links section on the left hand side of the hone
page.

As a rem nder, we do have a court reporter
here today to docunent the hearing. Wen you're called
up to speak, please state your nanme and affiliation
clearly for the record. For those of you that are on
t he phone, thank you for dialing in. W ask you to
pl ease nmute your phones. So, don't put us on hold, we
all know what wi Il happen then. Just place yourself on
mut e.

Al so, any tinme before speaking, if you
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coul d, again, restate your nanme and organi zation, that
will be a help. W are going to bring up the carriers
I n al phabetical order. Then we will invite comments
fromany interested stakeholders in the roomor those
on the phone.

Now, | et me reintroduce our chief actuary,
Todd Switzer who has a few opening comments he'd |ike
to make. Todd?

MR. SWTZER: Good norning. Thank you for
being part of this dialogue. Thank you to the carriers
for the val uable benefits and services you provide to
our seniors. Long-termcare, that continues to be an
al batross for us. |It's frustrating. W want to find
answers rather than just review filings. So, we
appreciate all the vantage points that are represented
here. W have 39 long-termfilings waiting for us back
at the office that we're revi ew ng.

Just sone kind of points of context that
|'ve cone across recently that was reintroduced to an
article by Alliance that cane out a few years, says
t hat baby booners are petrified of outliving their

noney. | can understand that. | encountered anot her
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actuary who bought a long termcare policy 22 years
ago, a single premum He said he priced it hinself,
he figured out what he thought it should cost, and he
found a carrier that it was offering it for a third of
the cost. So, he bought that. | said in fairness
t hough, he did have dinner with the actuary and tell
him you know, I'll w thdraw ny application if you'd
| i ke. He said the consultant price -- there's other
points of the story, but | think we have been over
before how we got to this point and we're trying to
work with everyone to find sone answers.

We have seen for the first time this year
Washi ngton State pass a public programw th a payrol
tax. However, it covers -- the maxi num benefit is
36,500 for a year. W know that a nursing honme costs
about 120,000 for a year. It doesn't start until 2025,
It's mandatory unl ess you have a standalone long term
care policy. But, we're trying to | ook around and see
what's bei ng done el sewhere.

We have seen long-term care standal one
really, as you know, abate. [In 2018, 57,000 policies

sold according to the NAIC. As you know, that's --
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sonme col |l ege football ganes. You will the stadiumwth
that many, that's how many in the whole country bought
st andal one. However, conbi nation products where
| ong-term care coupled with life insurance or
annuities, hybrid products, 404,000 were sold in 2018.
So, trying to, again, learn -- glean what we can from
what's going on all around the country.

Before | turn it over to ny coll eague,
Adam to tal k about sone of the things that we're
| ooki ng at, we got seven public comments between this
hearing and the last hearing. And a couple of things
fromthat stood out to ne. One was a survey from AH P
that said what woul d make people buy policies again?
And they had three things that would nake t hem nore
likely to buy. And one was if the prem umwas able to
be deducted frominconme tax, 91 percent of people
surveyed said that would help. |If they could be
guaranteed no rate increase, 86 percent. Last hearing
I n August, we saw a study by the SOA that said that for
policies sold in 2000, they estimated that there was a
40 percent probability that a rate increase would be

needed. The policies sold in 2014, only 10 percent.
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So, this is standal one |ong-termcare. So, as nore
data is aggregated, we're seeing sonme nore certainty
t here.

And on the public comments side, one
gentl eman, his conpany's board neeting, he wasn't able
to attend, unfortunately, so | promsed | would relay
sonme of his thoughts. "Il just pull sonme excerpts to
bal ance both perspectives. First, he clearly
understood that what we're left with is a tw sided
dilemma that facing the insurance departnent, the
conpanies and his own. He relays that, "when |
purchased this policy, the agent told nme that this
woul d be ny premumfor the rest of ny life." This is
his story. "I nmentioned and |I value the option, not to
state the obvious, of having | anding spots and benefit

reduction options, just trying to get all the response

on how the consuners react to that." He said, "I was
offered -- he took exception to the rate reduction
point that | had nmade when, in fact, |'m being offered

a benefit reduction. A lot of people bought prem um
policies, as you know, because they wanted a prem um

policy, a rich benefit."”
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Anot her senior says that, "the increases
seem reasonable to ne. | elimnated ny 30 day and
inflation rider. The original policy was a prem um

policy. Thanks for listening. How frustrating that 20

years and ny costs have risen dramatically." Another
one, "I'm83 and will be 84 in Septenber. | have never
benefited frominsurance except health insurance. |'m

glad to pay for peace of mnd, but | see this as

unfair. |If God grants my wish, I wll continue to
reside at hone.”™ W see that a lot. A |ot of people
want to stay at hone. "Bought the policy when | was in
nmy fifties, been paying premunms for 20 years, I'min
good health, no nedication, | |lead an active life,

pl ease investigate further.” "W're in our seventies

with supplenmental social security, but neither of us
has a pension or other incone source.” Highlighting
hardship that carriers have repeatedly -- they're
aware. And the |last one, "how can | begin to decide
whet her to conti nue paying prem uns when | don't know
if there's nore coming.” And we hear that a lot too in
our questions. That's why sone of the questions are

al ong those lines so when seniors ask, we can give them
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sonme information from publicly avail abl e data.

So, again, trying to set some context, but
again, nore than going through rate filings trying to
| ook for answers, and al ong those |ines, ny coll eagues
Adam and Jeff work on these long-termcare filings,
poring through every page and Adamis going to talk a
littl e about sone of the answers that are being
di scussed at the national |evel.

MR. ZI MVERMAN:  Hello. |'m Adam Zi mrer man,
actuary with the Maryland | nsurance Adm ni strati on.
Before going into the national level, | just want to
hi ghlight a few stats about the | ong-term care market
In 2018. So, the National Association of |Insurance
Comm ssi oners just recently rel eased their 2018
experience report for long-termcare, and in that year
end 2018, now this is for standalone |long-termcare, in
2018 in Maryland, there were 145,800 lives in force at
the end of 2018. The top ten conpanies of |long-term
care contri buted 82 percent of the total nmarket share.
And the aggregate loss ratio for all the conpanies in
Maryl and in 2018 was 97 percent. That is $299 mllion

in premuns and 289.6 mllion in clainmns.
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Broken out between group and i ndividual,

the individual loss ratio in Maryland was 99.9 percent.

258 mllion in premum 257.8 mllion in clainms, and in
the group market, it was 77.7 percent, 40.9 mllion in
premumand 31.8 mllion in clains.

And finally, in 2018, the average |long-term
care premiumin Maryland, as reported by the NAIC, was
$2,050. So, with that, | just wanted to follow up on
what Todd had indicated. The federal governnent is
al so looking at long-termcare currently through the
federal interagency task force on long-term care and
this task force was devel oped by the US Treasury and
has nmultiple people that sit on it including
representatives fromthe Departnent of Health and Human
Services, Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services,
the RS, Ofice of Managenent and Budget, Departnent of
Labor and the O fice of the Tax Policy and the Federal
| nsurance Office within the Treasury. The task force
I's developed with -- is tasked with devel opi ng policies
at a federal |level to conplenent the reforns at state
| evel s relating to the regulation of |long-termcare and

they're following up on ten policy proposals that were
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presented to themfromthe National Association of

| nsurance Comm ssioners in April of 2017. And to

qui ckly go through the policy proposals, they include
to allow retirenment claimparticipants to nake
distributions from 401 K, 403 B or IRAs to purchase

|l ong termcare. Insurance would no |onger w thdraw tax
penal ties.

The second option is to allow for creation
of an LTC savings account simlar to a health savings
account. The third office is to nodify H PPA to no
| onger require the 5 percent conpound inflation be
offered for tax qualified |long-term care policies.
Fourth option is to allow flexible prem um structures
simlar to universal life. Option five, which we're
al ready seeing, is to allow products that norph or
conbine with other |ong-termcare coverages, |like an
annuity or life insurance. Sixth option is to inprove
al i gnnment between the federal |aw and the NAIC | aws.
Seventh option is create a nore appropriate regul atory
envi ronnment for group long-termcare. The eight option
Is to establish nore generous federal tax incentives.

Ni nth option is to add honme health care or long-term
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care services to Medicare or Medicaid suppl enent
policies, and |last option is federal education canpaign
around retirenment security and the inportance of

pl anni ng for |long-term care.

Currently the task force has not provided
any recommendations, but we are aware of this and if
any recommendations are made fromthis task force, we
will, of course, see what needs to be done in order to
followup with those. That being said, | turn it over
to the conm ssioner.

MR. REDMER: Great. Adam thank you for
that update, and it certainly is indicative of the tine
and effort that regulators all around the country are
spending trying to come up with positive
recommendati ons regarding what is a very difficult
| ssue. Again, not just here in Maryl and, but all
around the country. So, thank you for the update.

Finally, before we get started, | want to
I ntroduce in the back, we have M chael Paddy, our
director of governnment relations fromthe accounting
team Craig Prem and the gal that manages the

accounting team Nancy Miehl berger who does all the
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hard wor k.

Wth that, let's get started. As |
mentioned, we're going to go in al phabetical order, and
with that, let's go to Anmerican General

MR. KRILL: Good norning. Thank you for
the opportunity to speak about the long-termcare rate
I ncrease filed by American General Life Insurance
Conpany. M nane is Earl Krill and I'm a nmenber --
spelled Krill, I'"ma nmenber of the Anmerican Acadeny of
Actuaries, and |I'm an associ ate of the Society of
Actuaries, consulting actuary for a long-term care
group and we have been authorized by Anerican General
Life I nsurance Conpany to provide support for the
conpany's long-termrate increase requirenents.

The conpany is currently requesting a
15 percent rate increase to the premumrate charged
for the policy form 64028- VD and C12271-NMD. The
request would inpact the premuns for the 146 insureds
In force as of Decenber 31st, 2018. The products
subject to this filing were available for purchase in
Maryl and between 1997 and 2001. They were designed and

filed prior to the rates stability regul ations,
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meani ng, they were priced to satisfy the m ni num | oss
ratio requirenments that the time. The increase is
bei ng requested because actual experience on this block
has been | ess favorable than originally anticipated at
the tinme the product was designed and pricing.

The original anticipated lifetine |oss
ratio was 61 percent. Wthout the current requested
rate increase, and under current best estimte
assunptions, the lifetine loss ratio is expected to be
a hundred percent.

These products have experienced
significantly higher increases in rates than originally
anticipated leading to nore policies remaining in force
than the conpany expected. Voluntary |apse rates have
been substantially |lower than originally expected at
the time of pricing, neaning, that nore insureds have
chosen to keep their policies active and in force.

Furthernore, inprovenents in nortality
rates conmpounded i ncrease and consi stency conpared to
original expectations. Lastly, the frequency of clains
and typical length of clains has al so been greater than

originally anticipated. In general, the conpany has
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experienced in the long-term care insurance market, the
conpany understands the inpact that an increase in
prem um has for its insureds and makes several options
avai l able to help those who do not wish to pay the
addi tional premuns. |ndividuals have the option to
reduce their daily benefit maxi nuns. They have the
option to reduce the benefit period on their policy.
Changes can be made to the elimnation period in the
effect. Optional riders added to the policy can al so
be nodified or elimnated.

The conpany is also participating in the
| osses incurred on this block of business. As of
Decenmber 31st, 2018, the conpany has held $87.5 mllion
i n additional actuarial reserves. This anount is
adjusted annually to reflect the current best estimate
of future clains in conparison to prem uns and
I nvest ment inconme on this block of business. This
anount is in excess of the active life reserves that
are already held and established on statutory
accounting principles.

The conpany has worked with the Maryl and

| nsurance Adm nistration since 2005 to address the
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| osses on this business and has inplenented prior rate
I ncreases. The approach has been to address deficiency
In premuns over tinme through a series of noderate

I ncreases at the 15 percent range. \While the
experience justifies a nmuch |onger increase request,

t he conpany does not feel that a single substanti al

I ncrease is in the best interest of its insureds or the
conpany itself. Rather at this time it's requesting an
addi ti onal increase of 15 percent and continue to

noni tor experience on this block as it energes.

I want to thank you again for the
opportunity to discuss the filing for American General
this norning and | wel cone any questions you nmay all
have.

MR. REDVMER: M. Krill, thanks for being
here. You nentioned the expected |oss ratio. Wat is
the current loss ratio?

MR. KRILL: Wth the historical experience
to date, it is -- it's about 76.5 percent.

MR. REDMER: So, |'m confused. You said
the expected loss ratio over the life would be 61

percent ?
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MR. KRILL: By original pricing, yes.
MR. REDMER: At original pricing. |'m
tal ki ng about the current loss ratio for 2018.
MR. KRILL: Just with 2018 prem uns and
experience?
REDMVER:  Yes.
KRI LL: That is 189.9 percent.

JI: That is a nati onwi de | evel ?

> 3 3 3

KRI LL: The Maryland is experience is
| ess credible, but in 2018 the |loss ratio would be
173.5 percent.

MR. REDMER: So, for every dollar you
collected | ast year, you paid out a buck 17 in clains?

MR. KRILL: Correct. The earned prem uns
in 2018 were 626,000 and the incurred clainms were
1.1 mllion. That's Maryl and specifically.

MR. REDMER: Got it. And for the projected
| oss ratio? What is the projected investnent return?

MR. KRILL: W are using a, | believe, 3.5
per cent .

MR. REDMER: Thank you. \Who el se?

MR. SWTZER: So, | see that Mryl and has

Veritext Lega Solutions
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150, 149, 146 nenbers, 5,700 nationwide. | gather in
the filing data -- let nme start with this: Mryl and
rates are higher currently by about 31 percent, 1,100 a
year, 4,700 versus 3,600, and Maryl and experience is a
little better. | have a year to date 68 percent | oss
ratio lifetinme, versus 104 nationwde. Am|l right that
no credibility is being given to Maryl and experience at
146 nmenbers?

MR. KRILL: Not to justify the rate
I ncrease. We're using nationw de experience. W're
adjusting it to Maryland approved rate increases.

MR. SWTZER: M | ast question, so,
prem unms started in 1997 at 1,400 a year, they're
currently at 4,700, so 3,700 increase. You're going to
noni t or experience, |ike you said, while greater than
25 percent can be justified, currently not seeking a
hi gher increase and instead will nonitor. Do you have
a sense of the likelihood that another increase will be
filed if a 15 just were, for the sake of argunent,
approved?

MR. KRILL: | nmean, as | nentioned, it's

going to come down to how the experience plays out.
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Currently, | nmean, we're sitting at a loss ratio in
excess of 100 percent, 110 loss ratio. So, there is a
chance that future rate increases will happen. But, |
woul dn't be able to tell you with the utnost certainty
If they will or not.

MR. SW TZER: Thanks.

MR. REDMER: Anybody el se?

MR JI: Oiiginally 25 percent rate
I ncrease, | would like to know how was that nunber
det er m ned.

MR. KRILL: It has a lot to do with, you
know, how managenent feels related to these rate
I ncreases. Like |I nentioned, there is this
understanding that it's a burden on the consuner. So,
we need to balance that with the notion that rate
I ncreases are necessary and the loss ratios is around.
So 25 percent has been the -- asked, for the nost part,
across the country in each state and Anerican Gener al
has been of the m ndset to request reasonable and
steady rate increases to offset the inm nent |osses.

MR. REDMER: Anybody el se? Thank you

again. | appreciate it.
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MR. KRILL: Thank you, guys.

MR. REDMER: Let's now go to Lincoln
Nat i onal .

M5. KIM H . 1I'"mon the phone.

MR. REDMER: Go ahead, Kri sten.

M5. KIM Kristin Kimand |I'mrepresenting
Li ncol n National. So, good norning, Conm ssioner

Rednmer and Maryl and | nsurance Adm nistration staff and
di stingui shed guests. Again, ny nane is Kristen Kim
and |'man actuary at Trustmark | nsurance Conpany
currently adm nistrating the closed bl ock of Lincoln
Nati onal long-termcare policy. On behalf of Lincoln
and Trustmark, | would Iike to thank you for providing
me with the opportunity to present information
concerning the two long-termcare fornms, HR2500MD and
HL2950MD.

Before | dive into the details behind the
rate increase filing, | would like to provide sone
qui ck sunmary of the products. The two forns are
simlar products in the early 1990s nationw de. By md
ni neties, Lincoln National ceased nmarketing of the

products and transferred the adm nistration of the
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busi ness to Trustmark. Approximtely 6,000 policies
were issued nationwi de of which 10 percent of the
policies were issued in Maryland. Currently, we have
about 1,300 in force nationwi de with about 150 policies
t hat are Maryl and i ssued.

Unli ke long-termcare policies that are
currently available in the marketplace, these policies
provide rich benefits. About 50 percent of the in
force policies provide lifetinme benefits and about
40 percent have five percent cost of |iving adjustnment
benefits. These closed bl ock of business are pre-rate
stability business, so our requirenents are to neet
mnimumIlifetime |oss ratio of 60 percent. Qur current
nati onwi de projected lifetinme loss ratio which is
adjusted to account for Maryland prem um |l evel is well
above 60 percent at 86 percent.

Wth this round of rate increases, we are
requesting an increase of 15 percent. W understand
that significant increase is a challenge for our
policyhol ders, so our strategy for the block is to
continue to work toward mininmnumloss ratio while

nmonitoring our future expected | osses such that we do
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not charge our insureds nore than necessary.

We would |ike to point out that our rate
I ncrease, even with 15 percent rate increase, wll
still provide better benefits with | ower prem uns than
the long-termcare products currently offered in the
mar ket pl ace. This rate increase is necessary nanely to
assure experience devel opi ng unfavorably conpared to
initial pricing assunptions. |In fact, several
assunptions like nortality and norbidity assunptions
were far too aggressive at the initial pricing of the
product .

In order to soften the inpact of the rate
I ncrease to our insureds, the conpany will provide two
alternative options in lieu of the rate increase. One
option is paid up coverage. Another option is
reduction in policy benefits. This could include
anywhere from|lowering the daily benefit anount to
reduci ng benefit period. 1In ternms of policies with
cost of |iving adjustnent benefits, they have the
option to remove COLA at which tinme the daily benefit
wll remain with current to date COLA increase. And

only future increases will stop.
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In order to inprove comrunication wth our
pol i cyhol ders about their options in connection with
the rate increase, we invite the policyholders to cal
our custoner service to discuss their personalized
options that will allow the policy to neet coverage and
their financial needs.

I would like to close by again enphasi zi ng
that the lifetinme loss ratio required for this policy
are 60 percent. But, our current projected lifetine
|l oss ratio is 86 percent. The requested rate increase
Is primarily designed to mtigate or reduce the
energent | osses and not to be profitable. It is in
bot h policyholder's and conpany's interest to continue
to nonitor and create a financially stable bl ock of
busi ness that will have adequate funds necessary to pay
current and future clains.

We [ ook forward to continued dial ogue with
Maryl and I nsurance Adm nistration in the rate increase
process. Thank you again for giving ne the opportunity
to speak today on our pending rate increase. Any
questions?

MR. REDMER: Yeah, Kristen. Thank you for
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joining us. 1'mgoing to ask you sane two that | asked
the previous carrier.

M5. KIM Sure.

MR. REDMER: \What is your current | oss
rati o and what is your projected investnent return in
your future projections?

M5. KIM So, as of 2018, nationw de
current loss ratio was 230 percent. And actually, |
mean, granted we only have 150 |lives in Maryl and, but
our experience in Maryland is slightly worse than that.
And our current investnent rate is about 6 percent.
But, the projection was based on 4.5 percent.

MR REDMER: So, I'ma little confused. |
your current loss ratio today is 230 percent, how do
you end up with a long term projected loss ratio of
86 percent?

M5. KIM That's because our actual --
since 1990s, the loss ratio is 61 percent. So, our
actual is running at 61 percent and then we expect
future, that's when all the insurance will start going
on claimand that will bring it up to 86 percent

because we're expecting future to have a |lot nore
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| osses than what we did in the past.

MR. REDMER: So, if you expect your
performance to deteriorate, how can it be 230 percent
today and inprove to 86 percent? What am | m ssing?

M5. KIM So, here to date is 25 years of
experience at 62 percent and going forward in 2018 was
230 and in 2019 is about 260 and it will continue to
get worse. But, since the block is closed bl ock of
busi ness, the future experience and future prem uns
that we're going to be getting is smaller. So, the
reason it's going to be a lower |oss ratio, even though
the future will have higher loss ratio, our path is
wei ght ed hi gher than what's going to happen in the
future,.

MR. REDMER: Who el se?

MR SWTZER: Hi. This is Todd Swtzer.
So, in looking at the financial statenents for 2018,
glad to see risk based capital is healthy at 903
percent, dividends are paid, 35 mllion. |'mlooking
at the 146, I'msorry, 178 nenbers in Maryland. The
policy was issued in '"91, closed in '96, prem uns

started at a thousand 55 a year. There's been six
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I ncreases, so it's at 2,200 as of 2018. So, we're at
duration 22, we've had six increases, prenm uns doubl ed.
My question is -- before | get to the question, one
| ast point, | see from Exhibits A which were hel pful to
have in the filing, that for Maryl and business with and
wi t hout the increase, projecting into the future, the
i ncrease of 15 percent woul d generate $228, 000 nore for
the conpany. In the big picture, 228,000 agai nst siXx
I ncreases already, leads ne to ny question, is there
any level that's considered dimninus where as people
get ol der and the enroll ment dw ndl es and you need a
bi gger increase to get to the financial targets, where
It beconmes to a point where the dollars are snmal
enough that there can be a halt? O is there a
dimninmus level financially and as the bl ock dw ndl es,
where the conpany woul d consider that as a factor in
what they propose?

M5. KIM So, what actually happened was
Li ncol n ceased nmarketing and they actually -- we
I nsured hundred percent of the business to Gen Re and
then Gen Re insured 50 percent with Trustmark. So,

Trustmark is holding 50 percent of the risk and we are
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al so adm nistrating the business. And so what we try

to dois, we try to | ook at nationwi de average rate

I ncreases, cunul ative rate increases, and if Maryl and

ends up being higher than nationwi de rate increase,

then we will likely not ask for additional rate

I NnCr ease.

Wth that said, we al so have realized that

t hough we have a pretty good forecast that is com ng up

with lifetinme loss ratio, we do end up seeing in

several years where our |oss ratio does cone in a

little nore favorable than what we had expected. So,

my guess at the nonment is that we will |ikely need

several rate increases so that Maryland rates are

simlar to nationwi de. But, at some point, since the

bl ock is dwi ndling, as you had nenti oned, we would

| i kely stop asking for rate increase at that point.

VR.
MR.
VS.
MR.

your 15 percent

SW TZER: Thank you.

REDMER:  Anybody el se?

KIM Any other questions.

JI: Yes, thisis jeff. | noticed that

rate increase, your lifetinme loss ratio

renoved from 86.3 to 85. 6. That is |l ess than one
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percent with 15 percent rate increase. You also
mentioned that you will not request any rate increase
that is not necessary. So, | would |ike to know how do
you define what is a rate increase that is necessary
and what is not?

M5. KIM So, it is basically we have to
| ook at the experience, the actual experience, that is
comng in 2018, '19, '20, and we do see that in the
nost recent years that our actual expected cones in
slightly better than what is in the forecast. And it
may be because the block is not credible or it may be
that our clains area have been able to diligently nmake
sure that we are paying clains on a payable claim And
so or it my be the size of the bl ock.

So, our expectation is that we wll |ikely
request because in other states, they are actually
providing us with higher rate increases. So, as soon
as Maryland reaches at a level that is simlar to the
nati onwi de average, we will |ikely not request rate
i ncrease for at |east several years and determ ne
whet her we do need further rate increase at that point.

That's our current plan.

Veritext Lega Solutions
215-241-1000 ~ 610-434-8588 ~ 302-571-0510 ~ 202-803-8830




© 00 N o o0 b~ w N

N NN R R R R R R R R R R
N B O © W N o O M W N B O

Page 33

MR. JlI: Thank you.

MR. REDMER: Any ot her questions for
Kristen? Kristen, thank you for joining us. W
appreciate it.

M5. KIM Thank you.

MR. REDMER: Let's go to Metropolitan.

MR. TREND: Good norning, |nsurance
Comm ssi on Rednmer and nmenbers of the Maryl and I nsurance
Adm ni stration panel, MetLife long-termcare
pol i cyhol ders and other interested nenbers of the
public. M nane is Jonathan Trend. |'m senior vice
presi dent and actuary at Metropolitan Life Insurance
Conpany. | have oversight responsibility for the
actuarial menoranda and acconpanyi ng docunents that
support the applications. | ama fellow of the Society
of Actuaries, a nenber of the Anerican Acadeny of
Actuaries and have over 20 years of experience with
| ong-term care insurance and the risks, assunptions and
benefits that are characteristic of that coverage.
Also with ne is TomReilly. Tomis MetLife's assistant
vice president of LTC Product Managenent and

Conpl i ance.
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We wel conme the opportunity to present our
views on MetLife's long-termcare insurance and to
answer your questions. Thank you also for providing
this forumfor Maryland citizens, including our val ued
custoners, to express their views and comments on the
filings. Qur brief presentation will include a
description of the steps we have taken to mtigate the
| npact of the proposed increases. W also hope to
provi de a greater understandi ng of why the increases
are necessary and the process MetLife uses to eval uate
t he underlying assunptions and risks that we are
required to assess before filing for an increase with
the adm ni strati on.

Pl ease keep in mnd that this presentation
wi Il highlight and expound upon certain areas relating
to MetLife's conprehensive filings nmade with the
adm ni stration on August 29th of this year. The
filings present the full and conplete actuarial basis
for the requested rate increases and constitute
MetLife's official requests and represent our
i ndi vi dual LTC busi ness.

MetLife's decision to file for rate
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I ncreases was nmade only after careful and in-depth
anal ysis of the experience relating to the policies
that are the subject of these filings. W are
proposi ng these increases in |light of the informtion
t hat has energed over the years these policies have
been in force, including claimexperience and
persistency, and the changes in assunptions underlying
these policies since they were first issued.

MetLife believes that the rate filings made
with the adm nistration clearly denonstrate that the
I ncreases are needed because the experience relating to
these policies has been and is expected to remain
materially worse than initially anticipated. This is
al so ny professional opinion. W believe that the
proposed prem um schedul es are not excessive nor
unfairly discrimnatory and the benefits provided are
reasonable in relation to the proposed prem uns based
on the lifetinme loss ratio being in excess of m nimm
requi rement set by Maryl and i nsurance | aw.

I an now going to turn the presentation
over to ny coll eague, Tom Reilly who w Il provide an

overvi ew of the scope of MetLife's application for rate
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| ncr eases.

MR. REILLY: Thank you for the opportunity
to speak with you about our filings. As background to
our filings, I think it would be helpful to briefly
expl ain the scope of the applications that are the
subj ect of today's hearing. MetLife is seeking
approval on two segnents of our long-termcare
I nsurance business. The first segnent includes policy
forms associated with MetLife's Individual LTC
busi ness. The policy fornms were issued between 2000
and 2012. The increase percentage that MetLife is
requesting on these forns is up to 15 percent. The
I ncrease percentage that MetLife is requesting on these
forms is up to 15 percent. Approximately 3,901
I nsureds fromthis business may be inpacted by this
rate increase.

The second segnent includes policy forns
| ssued by Teacher's Insurance and Annuity Associ ation
of America TlIAA-CREF Life |Insurance Conpany i ndividual
busi ness which MetLife acquired in 2004. After
acquiring this business, MetLife did not market or sell

new policies associated with Teacher's business. These
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policy fornms are issued between 1991 and 2004. The
I ncrease percentage that MetLife is requesting on these
forms is 15 percent. Approximately 755 insureds from
the Teacher's business may be inpacted by this rate
I ncrease.

Jonat han wi Il now address the actuari al
aspects of the filing.

MR. TREND: As previously nentioned,
MetLife believes that the application denonstrate that
the requested increases are justified to neet all
Maryl and requirenents for approval. To assist you with
the review, | will briefly speak to the application and
why we believe the requested increases are reasonabl e.
| will start by referring you to specific portions of
the filings that denonstrate that the | oss ratio on
Maryl and policies, after application of the requested
i ncrease, will remain far in excess of the mnimm/loss
ratio required for rate revisions under Maryl and
I nsurance | aw.

Loss ratios: The termloss ratio used
t hr oughout our testinony is here defined as the ratio

of incurred clains, the nonies paid to claimants, to
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earned prem um the nonies we collect from our
policyholders. References to past, future and lifetinme
| oss ratio or simlar qualifiers indicate the inclusion
of interest, time value of noney, in the calculations
which is required and accepted actuarial practice.

As part of the business by conpleting
peri odi ¢ anal yses of persistency rates, how many
policyhol ders keep their policies, nortality rates, how
| ong policyholders live, and norbidity rates, the
frequency and severity of clainms. The findings from
t hese anal yses were used in projecting the future
performance of in force business to determ ne the
effect of experience on the projected lifetinme |oss
ratio. The reason we study these paraneters is because
they bear directly on projected |evels of clains and
prem uns over the lifetime of the policies.

As explained in the nmenoranda, overal
actual persistency rates have been hi gher than that
assunmed when the policies were priced, nortality rates
have been | ower than that assumed in pricing and
norbidity rates have been |lower than that. The

conbi ned assuned in pricing. The conbined result of
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past experience and future projections based on current
assunptions, without a rate increase, are |oss ratios
that far exceed the mninmumrequirenents. |In fact, the
current projected lifetime loss ratios in Maryl and
range from 85 percent to 130 percent. This nmeans that
our current rate bases have us paying out from $85 to
$130 in benefits for every $100 we collect in prem um
Even after rate increases at the |evels requested in
our applications, the |loss ratios for the Maryl and
policies will range from 79 percent to 114 percent.
Again, well in excess of mninmumrequirenent. Tomwl|
now concl ude our testinony.

MR. REILLY: Please be assured that while
MetLife believes the requested increases are necessary,
justified and perm tted under Maryland's insurance | aws
and regul ati ons, we al so understand that any approved
I ncreases may cause sone policyhol ders to consider
canceling their coverage even in the face of rate
I ncreases.

Met Life's experience shows that the vast
maj ority of policyholders choose to maintain their

coverage even in the face of rate increases. For all
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pol i cyhol ders, including those who nmay consi der endi ng
their coverage because of any approved rate increase,
we will offer themnultiple options where available to
nodi fy their coverage to keep their premuns at a | evel
simlar to their current premuns. |In addition, we are
ext ending the use of the non-forfeiture endorsenent
whi ch was previously authorized by your departnent.
This endorsenent will provide a non-forfeiture benefit
so that all policyhol ders who choose to stop paying
prem uns in response to a rate increase can stil
mai ntai n sone pai d-up coverage. This neans that for
these policies, every prem umdollar previously paid,
m nus any benefits already received will be avail able
as a benefit if the insured goes into claim

In closing, we feel the value provided by
t hese coverages is significant and we are proud of the
service we have provided to MetLife policyhol ders
especially at the tinme of claim Since entering the
| ong-term care insurance market, MetLife has paid out
approxi mately $5 billion in claimns.

Thank you for the opportunity to testify in

support of MetLife's applications. W respectfully
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request that the adm nistration approve the filings as
submtted. This concludes our prepared renmarks.

MR. REDMER: Thank you. | only have one
guestion. | didn't catch, when did Met buy the
Teacher's bl ock?

MS. THOWVAS: 2004.

MR. REDMER: Todd?

MR. SWTZER: So, again for context, just
| ooking at risk based capital, 2018, 710 percent, good
strong level. Dividends, paid 148 mllion in 2018. MW
first question in the filing noted that justifiable
rate increase -- well, I'll relay your definition in a
m nute, led to needed increase of, call it, 52 percent
using M nnesota's if new nethod.

So, the if new nethod does not bring in --
and you've nentioned |loss ratio bases for determ ning
the increase. Investnent income was not brought into
the derivation of that 52 percent; is that correct?

MR. TREND: Interest is used as part of the
calculation as | described in ny testinony.

MR. SWTZER: You nentioned the tinme val ue

of noney, but | didn't |like, for exanple, when you

Veritext Lega Solutions
215-241-1000 ~ 610-434-8588 ~ 302-571-0510 ~ 202-803-8830




© 00 N o o0 b~ w N

N NN R R R R R R R R R R
N B O © W N o O M W N B O

Page 42

I ssued, for the nost popul ated plan with 2000 nenbers
I ssued in 2002, and sone issues in the nineties if you
I nvested in bonds, was the earnings on bonds part of

t he cal cul ati on of the 51.9?

MR. TREND: Not directly. So, the prem uns
we take in obviously to your point are invested in
securities that earn a return that are nmanaged in our
portfolio. That diffuse liabilities and other |ines of
busi ness. For purposes of the rate application, the
i nterest rate we assune in our filings is consistent
with the NAIC nodel |ine which defines the appropriate
interest rate to use as the valuation --

MR. SW TZER: The val uati on.

MR. TREND: Which is typically about 4.5
percent .

MR. SWTZER: Right. Wth the 51.9, just
for the sake of discussion, not bringing in the cost of
del ay, the 15 percent, so, you woul d expect, not
hol di ng you to anything, about three nore increases
after this one if 15 were granted to get to the 52?

MR. TREND: If things pan out, yes.

MR. SWTZER: Lastly, | see that the
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busi ness for this particular popul ated tranche of the
2000 is split between limted benefit and unlimted 76
percent, 24 percent and conmpound 5 percent interest, 51
percent are in that benefit plan. Do you typically

| ook at the experience by those breaks? Do you break
it that way?

MR. TREND: We do not. So, we have a
relatively socialized view of the way we do our
experience studies and the way we file for rate
I ncreases. Qur philosophy going into rate increases a
decade ago was that this was not the tine to
re-adj udi cate any potential subsidies that were not
I ntended at pricing with the exception of gender. This
was all sex rated. And we have socialized our plan.

So, both in our experience, studies and
rate application, everybody under that policy is in.

MR. SW TZER: Thank you.

MR. REDMER: Anybody el se?

MR. JlI: How often do you do experience

st udy?

3

TREND: Every study.

3

JI: Have you seen any part of lifetine
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| oss ratio frominpact?

MR. TREND: Certainly fromthe basis for
our application indicate that there have been sone
significant changes. | would characterize recent
changes to be tweaks because we | ook at it frequently.
We don't give a whole |lot of time for things to change.
There's been a sl ow decrease anpng traits, nothing
that's endem c across the industry. Mortality actually
goes up and down a little bit. |It's pretty steady.

And norbidity, again, is kind of a m xed bag. So,
smal | changes each year. That's why we do the study
every year, make sure things don't get away from us.

MR JI: Overall, lifetime loss ratio --

MR. TREND: The lifetinme |loss rati o,
mean, it's a highly | everaged busi ness, so changi ng one
assunmption by a small ampbunt has a conpound effect over
years. The lifetinme loss ratios nove around in
five-points in a given year. It could go up, it could
go down. Sone stay the sane. But not dramatically.

MR. REDMER: Anybody el se? Thank you,
gentl emen. W appreciate it. We will do our final two

together, Tinme Insurance Conpany Il and Union Security
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| nsurance Conpany. Marie, thank you for joining us.

M5. ROCHE: Good norning, everyone. My
name is Marie Roche and |' m assistant vice president of
governnment relations at John Hancock. | want to take
this opportunity to thank Comm ssion Redner and his
staff for providing us the opportunity to participate
in this inportant hearing.

|'m here today to address two |long-term
care rate increase filings currently pending before the
departnment. In March of 2000, John Hancock entered
I nto agreenent whereby it would adm nister and reinsure
t he bl ock of business. That is now known and is
basically split between two conpanies, the Time ||
| nsurance Conpany and Union Security |Insurance Conpany.
Through this coi nsurance arrangenent, John Hancock is
doing the adm nistration and servicing of the financial
risk, the admnistration responsibility for paying
claims and mai ntaining sufficient reserves for the
policy as well as for the underlying financial and
actuarial analysis supporting these filings.

So, as indicated, we currently have two

filings pending before the MA Both filings were
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submtted late in August of 2019. The Union Security
filing consists of two policy fornms sold between 1999
and 2003. This filing inpacts 421 Maryl and i nsureds.

The Tinme Il filing consists of four policy series sold
In 1999 and this filing inpacts 115 Maryl and i nsureds.

After correspondence with the MA and in
consi deration of the MA' s annual 15 percent
limtation, we have anmended each filing to propose a
single flat 15 percent rate increase. But, | do want
to note that the original request on Union Security was
a rate increase of 245 percent and the Tine Il was
323.9 percent.

We believe that the original requests are
actuarial justified and we will continue to seek
additional rate increases until the actuarial anounts
have been received. Please note that we are not trying
to recover any past losses in these filings, rather the
I ncreases are needed to cover projected future |osses.

| also wanted to take an opportunity
consi stent of what ny coll eagues have said of why these
rate i ncreases are needed. Long-term care insurance is

a |l ong duration product. Uses and expenses are
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difficult to predict for many decades in the future.
Most of the earlier premumincreases in the industry
were due to |lower than expected voluntary | apse rates.
Current prem umincreases are driven nore by clainms and
nortality experience.

This is still a relatively young |ine of
busi ness and many conpani es have just recently started
to get a significant amount of clains experience at
ol der retained ages and | ater policy durations where
the vast majority of clainms will happen. That's in
I ndi vidual s' late eighties and early nineties. W are
seei ng, the good news is that people are living | onger,
but unfortunately they're also living |longer in a nuch
frailer state. And we're seeing a higher rate of
clainms than expected and | onger lasting clains than
expected for those who make it through to those ol der
ages.

Putting our custoners first has been and
continues to be a critical conponent of everything we
do. And we believe very strongly that it's inportant
for your policyholders to retain their long-termcare

cover age.
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| want to turn to how we can hel p our
policyholders mtigate the inpact of the rate increase.
W will provide the followi ng benefit alternatives to
hel p our policyhol ders inpact the rate -- inpact -- or
mtigate the inpact of the rate increases. They
i ncl ude reducing the daily benefit or benefit period,

i ncreasing the elimnation period or dropping optional
benefits or a conbination of any of those. And in
addition, we'll also offer all eligible insureds a
contingent non-forfeiture benefit so long as the

I nsured nmeets the current NAIC nodel |ong-termcare
regul ation threshold triggering requirenents for this
benefit.

Now, the vast mpjority of this block is
pre-rate stabilization. So, we're making it contingent
non-forfeiture benefit available to fol ks who are in
the pre-rate stabilization block. And due to the
adm ni stration and pricing conplexities introduced by
the 15 percent cap requested by the MA, John Hancock's
new shared cost option will not be available to
Maryl and insureds to offset the rate increases. Nor

wll we be offering a paid-up policy option. However,
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as stated above, we'll continue to provide all insureds
a contingent non-forfeiture benefit.

Thank you again for allowing ne to address

the current Union Security and Time Il filings and |
w Il be happy to answer any questions that you have.

MR. REDVMER: | didn't catch the
relationship between Tinme Union, and -- did Hancock buy

t hat business or they just adm nistering it?

M5. ROCHE: We did not. We -- basically
it's a hundred percent reinsurance. So, the block
remains on Tinme Il and Security paper, but we have full
responsibility for the adm nistering and the servicing
of that bl ock.

MR. REDMER: Got it. Thank you. Anybody
el se?

MR. SWTZER: First | want to thank you for
the | ast hearing. As you recall, one of our seniors
stayed after and spoke with you and you wanted to
understand her prem um better and you wote a very
t hor ough, thoughtful letter back to her and | really
appreciate that. Thank you.

Noting in the filing on page 13 that the
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conpany said an effective date of 8/1/17 was assuned as
we do not want to charge policyhol ders for the
conpany's delay if filing. Appreciate just steps like
t hat about tim ng and when the conpany could have acted
of your own volition.

My question is, | was listening, | did hear
you say that -- |I'mtal king about Time for a m nute,
the one with 115 Maryl and nenbers, the needed increase
Is 324 percent and that you wll keep filing based on
what's actuarially justified. | see that -- so, the
policy was issued in '99, started at $1,300 a year,
it's currently at 1,951, three increases have been put
forward. For these 115 nenbers, | calculate that in
order to get to bringing in the 324 percent increase
that the prem um would need to get eventually to $9, 000
a year. | estimate that that would, based on this
15 percent increase, would generate |l ess than $100, 000
in premuns for 115 nenbers. M question is, are there
any circunstances, any exceptions to the rule as the
bl ock dwi ndl es, again simlar to previous question,
where that kind of dynam c would be brought in and

maybe i ncreases halted in certain pockets?
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M5. ROCHE: | absolutely believe there
woul d be. But, Todd, unfortunately, |I'mnot an actuary
and I'"'mnot really qualified to respond to that. But
what | will do is take it back to our actuaries at the
conpany and we will have a response to you before the
1l4th. Al right? |If that's acceptable.

MR. SWTZER: That's great. \What you said
hel ps and | appreciate that too.

MR. REDMER: Anybody el se? Jeff?

MR JI: M question is, so, the two
buyers, one either 245 percent rate increase, the other
324 percent. Since you will approve the rate filing of
15 percent, why you wait now for years for the past
rate increase request?

M5. ROCHE: The approval dates were back in

2016 and these were -- and began to be inplenented in
March of -- I'msorry, "15. You're right. 1'll be
honest. |I'mnot sure why. | think it's just because

of the way things canme up in the queue. But, again,
pol i cyhol ders woul d not be negatively inpacted by any
del ay that was our responsibility.

MR. JI: Thank you.
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MR. REDMER: Anybody el se?

MR. COONEY: | apologize in advance if |
m sunder st ood what you said, but for options to avoid
the increase, as you nentioned that contingent
non-forfeiture based on seniors eligibility will be
avail abl e, but you will not be offering any paid-up
coverage. From Maryland | aw, Section 18-416.1 which
were to beconme effective in 2018 was revised this past
year. |If the policy has been in force for at |east 20
years, others require non-forfeiture agreenent if any
of these policies were issued in 1990.

M5. ROCHE: | apol ogize for the
m sunderstanding. W're in conplete conpliance with
the NAIC requirenents that were adopted in Maryl and.
But, outside for John Hancock's book of business, the
pai d-up option that |I'mtal king about is an enriched
contingent non-forfeiture benefit where the prem um
val ue was 150 percent, not the hundred percent. So,
we're in conplete conpliance with that. Sorry about
t hat .

MR. COONEY: Thank you.

MR. ZI MVERMAN: | | ooked on the NAIC
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website for some information about the formfive filing
for Time Il and the formfive outlines all the
| ong-term care and none is available. |Is that because
the conpany is not domciled in the United States? Do
you know if there's different reporting requirenents
for that?

M5. ROCHE: | could find that out. Time Il
has been taken over by a conpany that's domciled in
Puerto Ri co. | don't know if that makes a difference,

but | can find out and | can include that in the

response.
MR. ZI MVERMAN: That woul d be great. Thank
you.
MR. REDMER: Anybody el se? Thank you very
much. We will now go to the phones. | would first

like to invite any legislators that m ght be on the
phone to introduce yourselves and if you have any
guestions to go ahead and ask them Any | egislators?
Goi ng once, twce, three tines.

Okay. We will now go to any ot her
I nterested parties that my be on the phone and

i nterested in maki ng either coments or asking
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questions. |If you're speaking nowis a good tine to
unnut e the phone.

' m not hearing anybody. Before we do
wrap-up, you will, for those of that you are here, wll
notice that sonme of us are a little |less clean shaven
than normally. W are participating in no shave
Novenmber to bring awareness to prostate cancer. So,
for all of you have guys of a certain health, certain
age | should say, make sure you take your health
seriously. Wth that, again thank you for
participating and we will adjourn the neeting. Thanks
a lot.

(Hearing concluded at 10:10 a.m)
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State of Maryl and
City of Baltinore, to wit:

|, Louisa B. McIntire-Brooks, a Notary Public
of the State of Maryl and, Anne Arundel County, do
hereby certify that the w thin-nanmed proceedi ngs took
pl ace before ne at the time and place herein set out.

| further certify that the proceedi ngs were
recorded stenographically by me and this transcript
Is a true record of the proceedi ngs.

| further certify that I am not of counsel
to any of the parties, nor an enployee of counsel,
nor related to any of the parties, nor in any way
I nterested in the outconme of this action.

As wi tnessed ny hand and notarial seal this

25t h day of Novenber, 20109.

i 6 o frrba

Loui sa B. MIntire-Brooks

Notary Public

My conmmi ssi on expires:

Novenber 13, 2023
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